Questions and Answers
from the 12/8/2016 Bidders Conference
[bookmark: _GoBack]for RFP #201611206 Construction material Testing LIM System

1. Can you make editable forms available for Appendices A, C, D so we don’t have to recreate them?
	Yes. Appendices A,B,C, and D in editable Word format are at the bottom of this document.  Please note that there is always a possibility that the RFP will be amended. If this occurs, it is your responsibility to ensure you are using the current copies of the appendix forms.
2. Can we get some examples of what is meant by Configurable workflow?
 Although the tests are standard, each lab has its own process…what role does each step of the test, where a supervisory review/approval occurs in the procedure.
3. Do you anticipate the need to interface with other devices for testing purposes, e.g. densitometers?
We would like to explore it. In the contract, we will pilot a couple of balances as indicated in RFP.  The long term goal is do it as much as possible with modern equipment.  The next phase might be the concrete structures lab MTESTQuattro system. In the future, we may get nuclear density gauges with Bluetooth capability, but current gauges are not equipped with it.  But we will focus on equipment that can be easily integrated by wireless or wire, we will not be attempting it with old equipment.
4. Have any APIs or Interfaces been exposed for the Oracle applications?
No – custom development on the database level (for internally hosted Oracle systems) or via web services (for non-Oracle or externally hosted systems) is usual.  Generally, they are designed by the vendor and State team together.  The vendor develops the functionality to consume external data within their system, and the Department builds services to present data or consume data within their own systems. The vendor makes the LIMS database available for query/extract, and supports the Department in developing queries and database views, which reduces the vendor’s involvement in producing LIMS data for external interfaces.
5. When do you expect to award the project?
Although the timeline can vary considerably, generally it takes 6-8 weeks to review and score the proposals and send the first award notification.  The review process may include reference checking, interviews with one or more vendors to clarify proposals, etc. There is an appeal period described in the RFP, during which the Department of Purchases also reviews the award.  Both must be completed before the contract can be finalized.
6. Do you make public the budget you have available?  
	No.
7. Is all the information we submit going to end up in the public record?
Basically, yes.  If you include proprietary information, be sure to mark it as such. However if there is a request for records, Purchases may review and disagree with your designation of proprietary information.
8. What equipment do you interface with for testing?
We don’t currently capture anything directly into TIMS.  We integrate with TinyTIMS. 
9. Can you explain the status and needs for TinyTIMS?
TinyTIMS was developed for mobile field use. It runs in disconnected mode and syncs with TIMS.   It runs on handheld HP IPAQ PDA devices for field testing techs to capture data – such as hot mix and concrete plant inspections, field test data such as nuclear densities, and IA inspections.  Each involves for data entry into a PDA form some test data and some simple checklists.  It is still in use.  Its retirement is in Phase 1 as it is a risk:  it is difficult to buy those PDAs now. 
10. How many PDAs do you have, and how many people are using them?  
Nine, plus a couple of spares for consultant employees. We envision many more people using mobile devices going forward, as most of our sampling is currently done by project inspectors using paper sample ID forms.
11. What devices are you looking at?  
Our philosophy is to match the hardware to the needs of the software procured.     Neither the Department nor the State has a standard device.  Our Office of Information Technology will assist us in selecting and procuring devices that best meets the requirements.  The Department already supports a variety of devices for various purposes such as Microsoft tablet computers, a variety of Android and Apple smartphones, and iPADS.  Our bridge inspectors, for example, use iPADS because they are the only mobile device supported by Bentley’s Inspecttech.
12. Do we have to have a disconnected option from the internet? 
We prefer store-and-forward since some parts of state have poor connectivity.  We would hate to have to force people back to paper and pencil when the internet is unavailable.
13. What information do you get out of PROJEX and Free2000? Is it one-way or two-way? 
In both cases the information is one-way.  As documented in the RFP, Free2000 provides basic employee data such as name, employment status; and PROJEX provides basic project status such as project identifier (WIN), project name, federal funding flag, project resident’s name.  Both are custom built Oracle applications.
This is not requested in the RFP but is provided for background information in response to the question: As a future nice-to-have, we can envision 2-way integration with AASHTO PROJECTWISE ‘s schedule of items.  This is a list of pay items and estimated quantity for the project, which is then loaded into MS Excel by the project resident to determine the number of tests needed to ensure that the minimum testing standards are met (these are often based on quantity of materials used).  These tests must be adjusted as estimates are adjusted as well.  If linked, the project resident could receive more automated assistance in setting up and maintaining the minimum project testing, and monitoring the fulfillment of that testing.  It is not designed at this time, and is not requested in the RFP.

14. Does the TIMS include sampling and testing requirements with rates and frequency? 
Currently that is in the separate excel sheet.  TIMS has a summary of tests executed to date only. 
15. You mentioned that the proposal review process sometimes includes vendor interviews. Are these done in person, or over the internet?
The proposal review process does sometimes include interviews with one or more vendors, it is not guaranteed.   These are requested on a case by case basis if we determine we desire clarification after reading the proposals. They are often done by internet webinar rather than in person.  
16. You require direct query access to the database – is that admin access – or is it to query and analyze the data? 
Query and analyze the data.  To load data to our data warehouse or other external systems.
17. What do you use for data warehousing?
Oracle BI  
18. Are there any requirements for implementation timeline?  
Our goal is a smart, orderly implementation.  We envision moving a test or material at a time.  We don’t want to be run the same test in both systems simultaneously, and we don’t envision converting partly done tests from TIMS into the new system.  Tests active in that portion of TIMS would be completed, then that type of test would be archived in TIMS as historical.  Even if there is a long cycle time from sample to reporting, we would generally finish in the TIMS system.  
19. So implementation will be based on the material rather than the project?
Most of the time, it will be based on a material or test rather than project.  For some items, the project will have to be taken into consideration.  For example, asphalt.  We close out asphalt lots annually and might be able to transfer still-active projects at the end of the year rather completing them all in TIMS.
20. Appendix F has examples of test forms, are you looking for an exact duplicate, or can it be substantially similar? 
In Appendix E, the list of tests by phase indicates each test as “AASHTO” or “ASTM” or “MaineDOT”.  Appendix F is to provide some explanation of what each “MaineDOT” test is, since it won’t be documented in any standard elsewhere.  Most of them are actually reports rather than tests: pay adjustments, IA reports, etc.  They do not have to be duplicated exactly; for all we know some will no longer be needed due to the design of the new system.  We will work with the vendor.
20. How many standard tests? 
Count them in the list of tests by phase in the RFP appendix E.  Generally, we use AASHTO standard testing, and ASTM where an AASHTO test not available. We have very few standalone MaineDOT test procedures.  Many of the items in Appendix F are reports rather than tests.

21. If you do request an interview during proposal review, would you be willing to provide a few samples of the Appendix F reports for the purposes of setting up a demo?
Yes.
22. You mention “critical reports” as part of phase 1.  Which reports are critical?
Critical reports cannot be identified as such as this point:  it comes down to making the phase 1 workflows work.  For example, the pay adjustment report is critical to our work flow because the report controls the lot-by-lot payment to the contractor and can trigger shutdown of work.

23. Do you see external users being able to access this application?  
Nice to have in the future, but not envisioned for the scope of the contract.  There are certain things that we would like to have someday: 
· a contractor able to directly submit hot mix or concrete mix design
· a contractor able to directly submit quality control reports 
· contractors able to view project test results through a project portal rather than getting them by email.
· A contractor able to initiate a formal dispute.   
24. How many labs do you have? 
The labs are described in detail in the first section of the RFP.


APPENDIX A

State of Maine 
Department of Transportation
[bookmark: _Toc367174752][bookmark: _Toc397069216]PROPOSAL COVER PAGE
RFP# 201611206
Construction Materials Testing Laboratory Information Management System

	Bidder’s Organization Name:

	Chief Executive - Name/Title:

	Tel:
	Fax:
	E-mail:

	Headquarters Street Address:

	

	Headquarters City/State/Zip:

	

	(provide information requested below if different from above)

	Lead Point of Contact for Proposal - Name/Title:

	Tel:
	Fax:
	E-mail:

	Street Address:

	

	City/State/Zip:

	



	Proposed Cost:
	$ 

	The proposed cost listed above is for reference purposes only, not evaluation purposes.  In the event that the cost noted above does not match the Bidder’s detailed cost proposal documents, then the information on the cost proposal documents will take precedence.



· This proposal and the pricing structure contained herein will remain firm for a period of 180 days from the date and time of the bid opening.
· No personnel currently employed by the Department or any other State agency participated, either directly or indirectly, in any activities relating to the preparation of the Bidder’s proposal.
· No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit or not to submit a proposal.
· The undersigned is authorized to enter into contractual obligations on behalf of the above-named organization.

To the best of my knowledge, all information provided in the enclosed proposal, both programmatic and financial, is complete and accurate at the time of submission.

	Name (Print):


	Title:

	Authorized Signature:


	Date:
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APPENDIX B

State of Maine 
Department of Transportation
DEBARMENT, PERFORMANCE and NON-COLLUSION CERTIFICATION
RFP# 201611206
Construction Materials Testing Laboratory Information Management System

By signing this document, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the aforementioned organization, its principals and any subcontractors named in this proposal:
1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, and declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from bidding or working on contracts issued by any governmental agency.
1. Have not within three years of submitting the proposal for this contract been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for:
0. Fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a federal, state or local government transaction or contract.
0. Violating Federal or State antitrust statutes or committing embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
0. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or Local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b) of this certification; and
0. Have not within a three (3) year period preceding this proposal had one or more federal, state or local government transactions terminated for cause or default.
1. Have not entered into a prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, firm, or person submitting a response for the same materials, supplies, equipment, or services and this proposal is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. The above mentioned entities understand and agree that collusive bidding is a violation of state and federal law and can result in fines, prison sentences, and civil damage awards.
Failure to provide this certification may result in the disqualification of the Bidder’s proposal, at the discretion of the Department.


	Name (Print):


	Title:

	Authorized Signature:


	Date:





APPENDIX C

State of Maine 
Department of Transportation
 Organizational Experience with Similar Projects
RFP# 201611206
Construction Materials Testing Laboratory Information Management System

	Bidder’s Organization Name:
	



	Provide a description of up to four projects performed recently which reflect experience and expertise needed in providing the services described in “Scope of Services” portion of this RFP.  For each example, provide a reference person from the client organization with email address and telephone number.  Please note that contract history with the State of Maine, whether positive or negative, may be considered in rating proposals even if not provided by the Bidder.  Please note that Department contacts for references on past projects will not necessarily be limited to, or with, the listed Client Contact.

If the Bidder has not provided similar services, note this, and describe experience with projects that highlight the Bidder’s general capabilities. 	



	Project One

	Client Name:
	

	Client Contact Person:
	

	Telephone:
	

	E-Mail:
	

	Project Period:
	

	Brief Description of Project

	








	Project Two

	Client Name:
	

	Client Contact Person:
	

	Telephone:
	

	E-Mail:
	

	Project Period:
	

	Brief Description of Project

	









	Project Three

	Client Name:
	

	Client Contact Person:
	

	Telephone:
	

	E-Mail:
	

	Project Period:
	

	Brief Description of Project

	










	Project Four

	Client Name:
	

	Client Contact Person:
	

	Telephone:
	

	E-Mail:
	

	Project Period:
	

	Brief Description of Project

	









APPENDIX D

State of Maine 
Department of Transportation
[bookmark: _Toc367174753][bookmark: _Toc397069217]COST PROPOSAL FORM
RFP# 201611206
Construction Materials Testing Laboratory Information Management System

	Bidder’s Organization Name:
	



Add lines to the tables as needed to itemize the costs.   Pricing must be sufficient to cover the usage described in all portions of the RFP and associated workbook.  

For each line item in the Proposal Workbook marked, “will meet requirement at additional cost”, please add that line item to the appropriate portion of this Cost Proposal Form referencing the REQ. LINE NUMBER and associated additional cost.  If there is no entry for it in this Cost Proposal Form, it will be considered to be $0 for the purposes of cost scoring and contracting.
	 
1. FIXED COSTS  
Most proposals will include some fixed cost items, which should be shown in this section.  If there are no fixed costs, write “$0” in the last line’s total for this table.

	Itemized annual fixed costs, if any, such as licensing and support.
	

	Description
	Year 1 Cost
	Year 2 Cost
	Year 3 Cost
	Year 4 cost 
	Year 5 cost 
	Year 6-7 cost, if renewed
	Year 8-9 cost, if renewed
	Year 10 cost, if renewed



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Itemized one-time fixed costs, if any, such as implementation fees, proprietary hardware in known quantities, training fees.

	Description
	Cost

	
	

	
	

	 
	

	Total of all fixed costs for initial contract period (Year 1 through 5) Please check your math carefully and explain any intentional discrepancies. 
	



2. NON-FIXED COSTS: DESCRIPTION 
In addition to fixed prices, there may be ad hoc or time and material based fees, such as proprietary hardware (unknown quantities at time of proposal), use of additional tests in library, creation or modification of tests or reports, or fees for adding more user seats or tests.  Please fully describe all non-fixed pricing, and to include price lists and rate tables.  If none, please state “All costs are fixed”, skip 2.1 and fill out 3.



Appendix D (continued)

2.1 NON-FIXED COSTS: ESTIMATE FOR PROPOSAL COST SCORE
Only fill out 2.1 if you did not respond “All costs are fixed”, above.

For cost scoring, please estimate the non-fixed costs for the following scenarios based on the proposed ad hoc pricing. Describe cost assumptions used, if necessary, such as hours*hourly rates or items from price list under cost assumptions.  If no charge, set estimated cost to $0.

 If for any scenario, the scenario would not be allowable, please indicate “Not allowable” and set estimated cost to $0.  “Not allowable” scenarios will be taken into consideration in Section II scoring.  Add space or lines as needed.

	Scenario
	Estimated Cost
	Estimated Cost is based on the following assumptions or computations. May use more space below if necessary. 

	Estimate of non-fixed cost initial implementation costs, covering all aspects of implementation.  Please itemize.
	
	

	Add 1 new ASTM test from the systems’ standard offerings.
	
	

	Add a new MaineDOT test consisting of a simple test form and test report to base system and field software, if offered.
	
	

	Add a complex MaineDOT test consisting of four workflow steps, tabular data entry, computation of 2 additional fields based on entered data and a test report including a simple graph of captured data to the base system.
	
	

	Add same test to the field software, if offered.
	
	

	Revise display of a standard test form by modifying 2 field labels and changing the order of the 2 fields in the display (if not allowable in the system, indicate so and set to $0).
	
	

	Create a simple custom report based on an existing standard report but with two additional fields displayed (12 hrs.).
	
	

	Integrate an additional electronic scale same model as the Bangor scale.
	
	

	Additional license costs to set up a third installation for development testing. (We set up a third installation when preparing for a major software upgrade so that we have test environments for the new and old releases.)
	
	

	Addition of 50 contractor (non MDOT) users for data entry access.
	
	

	Total estimated NON-FIXED COSTS over initial contract period, (sum of above lines).
Please check your math carefully and explain any intentional discrepancies.
	
	




Appendix D (continued)

3. TOTAL COST SUMMARY SHEET. Please check your numbers carefully and explain any discrepancies.
	Description
	Amount

	Total of all fixed costs for initial contract period (Year 1 and 5)
 FROM last line of Table 1 above.   
	

	Total estimated NON-FIXED COSTS over initial contract period 
FROM last line of Table 2.1 above.
	

	COST PROPOSAL GRAND TOTAL.  This amount will be used in cost scoring of the proposals.  It should be the sum of the two lines above it.
	





